

The State of Washington

COMMISSION ON ASIAN PACIFIC AMERICAN AFFAIRS

210 11th Ave SW • RM 301 • ms 40925 • Olympia, Washington 98504-0925 PH: 360.725.5667 • FX: 360.586.9501 • EM: capaa@capaa.wa.gov • WS: www.capaa.wa.gov

Improving the lives of Asian Pacific Americans

Commission on Asian Pacific American Affairs Board Meeting

Chinese Information and Service Center, 611 South Lane Street, 2nd Floor, Seattle, WA 98104 Saturday, November 17, 2012

REGULAR BUSINESS:

INTRODUCTIONS AND WELCOME

CALL TO ORDER

Welcome and introductions were given. The meeting was called to order at 10:03 a.m.

ROLL CALI

Commissioners Present: Lisa Dickinson, Pearl Leung, Darren Pen, Frieda Takamura, Rey Pascua, Quang Nguyen, Ty Tufono, Debadutta Dash, Sofia Aragon and Tashi Khamshitsang.

Commissioners Absent: Jagdish Sharma and Jeannie Lee.

Staff Members Present: Executive Director, Kendee Yamaguchi; Executive Assistant, Justin Chan.

APPROVAL OF NOV 17, 2012 AGENDA

Motion was made 10:05 a.m. by Commissioner Dickinson and seconded by Commissioner Dash to approve the agenda with no amendments. Agenda approved.

APPROVAL OF SEPT 15, 2012 MINUTES

Motion was made 10:10 a.m. by Commissioner Dickinson and seconded by Commissioner Takamura to approve the minutes with amendment to incorporate the Commissioner Report. Minutes approved.

APPROVAL OF LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES

Motion was made 10:46 a.m. by Commissioner Leung and seconded by Commissioner Khamshitsang to approve the Legislative Priorities with amendments. Legislative Priorities approved.

Motion was made 10:50 a.m. by Commissioner Takamura and seconded by Commissioner Pascua to support OEO policy recommendation regarding Language Access for Asian American and Pacific Islander students and families. Motion passed.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

1. FINANCIAL REPORT:

• **Operating Budget**: The agency's operating budget for the 2011-2013 biennium is \$234,000 for FY 2012 and \$212,000 for FY 2013 with a total of \$446,000. The agency will be able to maintain current staffing levels but will continue to have limited discretionary funding for printing, translation services and supplies.

Agency Overview

• 2013-2015 Supplemental and Operating Budget: In September, the 2013-2015 Supplemental and Operating Budget was submitted to the Office of Financial Management. A request was made for \$12,000 in FY 2013 and FY 2015 to cover basic operating expenses.

2. MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION:

Casework System: The agency continues to maintain an integrated online casework system. Requests on financial aid
resources for school and employment opportunities remain steady.

3. LEGISLATIVE SESSION:

- Asian Pacific Islander Legislative Day: Staff continues to assist the Asian Pacific Islander Coalition in securing a
 permit to use the capitol campus for the 2013 API Legislative Day and a venue for the legislative leadership meeting.
 The API Legislative Day will be on February 19, 2013.
- Legislative Priorities: The regular legislative session will begin on January 14, 2013 in Olympia. Commissioner Aragon, our legislative liaison, will circulate the 2013 legislative priorities for review and approval.

4. UPDATE ON PROGRAMS AND PROJECTS:

- Infographic on Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders in Washington State: In October, the Commission developed a new resource, *Bridging the Gap: the Asian American and Pacific Islander Community in Washington State.* This infographic provides current data on gaps in access for the community in the commission's priority areas of education, healthcare and economic development. Pacific Islanders continue to face some of the highest high school dropout rates and poverty rates in our state. More information can be found on our website.
- A Guide for Responding to Emergencies in Asian American and Pacific Islander Communities: In November, with input from the U.S. Department of Justice Community Relations Services and the Washington State Emergency Management Division, the Commission produced A Guide for Responding to Emergencies in Asian American and Pacific Islander Communities. Access to information and resources during emergencies is critical for the diverse Asian American and Pacific Islander communities in our state. This guide was developed to assist agencies in working with diverse Asian American and Pacific Islander (AAPI) communities in an emergency, disaster or a culturally sensitive issue.
- Marine Debris Task Force: The Commission on Asian Pacific American Affairs continues to serve on the Washington State Marine Debris Task Force and as a lead to the Cultural Heritage Workgroup. This workgroup continues to provide counsel on cultural competency issues and ways to reach out to diverse communities relating to our state's work on the Japanese tsunami marine debris.
- Filipino American History Month: Special recognition to Commissioner Pascua for his work on Filipino American
 History Month in Washington State. In the month of October, the commission met with Superintendent Randy Dorn
 and the Tacoma School Board to raise awareness of the month. Resolutions from several municipalities and counties
 were also secured.
- Accepting Applications for the CAPAA ACLF Fellowship: Celebrating the fourth year of the fellowship program sponsored by the Commission on Asian Pacific American Affairs and the Asian Pacific Islander Community Leadership Foundation (ACLF), we invite future leaders to apply. The fellowship is based in Olympia during the regular legislative session beginning in January 2013. We welcome applications from college juniors, seniors and graduate students. Application review will begin on December 1st and more information can be found on our website.

5. OUTREACH:

- Statewide Outreach: Despite limited resources, staff continues to conduct community outreach and provide advocacy on policy related issues facing the AAPI community and outreach to underrepresented populations. Over 120 meetings and events with stakeholders, governmental entities and community organizations have occurred in the last three months, in addition to the numerous events our commissioners have attended in each of their counties.
 - O Community Connections: Staff continues to meet with over twenty community leaders and community based organizations on a regular basis to hear about issues and concerns facing their unique communities. When necessary, casework and policy issues are brought to the attention of the Governor's Office, federal agencies, state agencies and legislative members.

- Race Exhibit at the Wing Luke Museum: The Commission is pleased to be a partner on the Wing Luke Museum's upcoming art exhibit about race and race relations which will be on display from May 10 - November 17, 2013.
- Federal Outreach: Our agency continues to maintain relationships with federal agencies to stay apprised of policies impacting the Asian American and Pacific Islander community in our state.
 - Federal Policies Impacting Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders: Staff continues to regularly participate in
 monthly calls with federal agencies on policies impacting the Asian American and Pacific Islander community.
 Issues range from health and education to the economy and immigration. Federal agencies include the Department
 of Justice, the Federal Trade Commission and the U.S. Department of Agriculture.
 - White House Initiative on Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders: On October 30th, the executive director met with Akil Vohra, Senior Advisor to the White House Initiative on Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders who supervises education, the bullying prevention campaign, data issues and improving efforts of representation in government. Staff provided an update on the commission's work and advocated on a number of issues of concern to the statewide Asian American and Pacific Islander community.
 - U.S. Department of Agriculture Risk Management Agency: In September, the executive director met with staff
 from the U.S Department of Agriculture and provided recommendations for outreach to Asian American and
 Pacific Islander communities in Washington State.
 - o **Federal Trade Commission's Consumer Protection Conference**: On October 25th, the executive director spoke on a panel focusing on vulnerable populations and consumer protection issues. The panel was part of a common ground meeting for the *21st Annual Consumer Rights Litigation Conference* providing attorneys and advocates with the latest developments in consumer law from the country's leading experts.
 - Small Business Administration: On September 19th, the executive director participated in a symposium entitled, Small Business and Government: Maximizing Entrepreneurship, Driving Innovation. Panels focused on optimizing the relationship between small business innovators and government, maximizing the impact of entrepreneurial accelerators and utilizing emerging capital strategies.
- Agency Outreach: Since the launch of the Asian Pacific American State Agency Liaison-Network (APASAL-Network), staff continues to meet with our agency liaisons on a monthly basis. Meetings cover current policies and programs for the AAPI community, partnership opportunities, assistance requests, recommendations and policy issues. This infrastructure bridges communication and access to services and programs for the community.
 - O Department of Social and Health Services: Staff connected with Victor Chacon, our agency liaison, on policies impacting the Asian American and Pacific Islander community. Community members should be aware that the Division of Child Support (DCS) will be replacing the current US Bank ReliaCard with a new card from Bank of America. The new card will be mailed to cardholders in August. Child support payments will be automatically deposited to the new card beginning September 5, 2012, after payments are received. Staff continues to monitor the number of Asian American and Pacific Islander caseloads coming into the Department of Social and Health Services.
 - Employment Security Department: A special thanks to our agency liaison, Eddie Maiva, who will be leaving the Employment Security Department in the next month. The commission continues to work with the agency on ongoing outreach activities for the Pacific Islander community given our state's data showing lower rates of unemployment. A new liaison is in the process of being identified.
 - Department of Financial Institutions: Lyn Peters provided an update on programs and policies of interest to the Asian American and Pacific Islander community. The commission continues to advocate for more translated materials and programs. On September 18th, the Department of Financial Institutions provided a presentation on elder fraud to the Vietnamese community in Tacoma. This fall, several free foreclosure legal clinics and workshops will be held for the Asian American and Pacific Islander community. The last event was held in September at Asian Counseling and Referral Service.
 - Office of the Attorney General: Staff connected with Paul Corning, our new agency liaison, to advocate for the collection of disaggregated data to determine which Asian American and Pacific Islander communities may be experiencing higher cases of fraud and to make recommendations for the development of more translated

- materials in Asian languages. In November, the executive director met with Shannon Smith, the new chief of the Consumer Protection Division to advocate for more programs and materials for those with limited English.
- Workforce Training and Education Coordinating Board: Walt Wong provided an update to staff on policies and work impacting the Asian American and Pacific Islander community. The executive director participated in several meetings to provide input on the High Skills, High Wages 2012-2022: Washington Strategic Plan draft which will be presented to the legislature this fall. In particular, the commission advocated for the inclusion of high school dropout and retrieval programs and wrap-around models for diverse populations. Several community members also participated in public forums on the draft plan in Everett, Tacoma, Spokane and Yakima.
- Office of Minority and Women's Business Enterprises: The executive director continues to meet with agency liaison, Chris Liu, to discuss policies, programs and opportunities for Asian American and Pacific Islander business owners. Staff is currently providing recommendations on procurement reform policies. The commission also continues to monitor the number of certified firms opening in our state that are Asian American and Pacific Islander and the amount of capital being accessed.
- Office of the Education Ombudsman: Working with our agency liaison, Cathy Liu, the commission continues to provide recommendations on outreach strategies to ensure the Asian American and Pacific Islander community is aware of the services of the Office of the Education Ombudsman. Community members should be aware of a program called, *Finding Your Voice*, which helps parents better understand the public school system and become better advocates for their children. Events will occur in 2013. The commission is also working in partnership with the Ombudsman on a language access policy for limited English students and their parents to reduce the opportunity gap in our schools.
- O Human Rights Commission: Staff met with Sharon Ortiz, our agency liaison, who provided an update on programs and policies impacting the Asian American and Pacific Islander community. In November, after an increase in discrimination complaints, the Human Rights Commission opened a new office in Vancouver. Community members should also be aware that rule making meetings are currently in progress on sexual orientation and gender identity.
- Department of Early Learning: Amy Blondin, our agency liaison, provided an update on early learning programs and policies. The commission is currently providing recommendations on the creation of videos for the Asian American and Pacific Islander community on the Washington State Early Learning and Development Guidelines. Community members should also be aware of an opportunity to serve on the Trainer Approval Board which is a volunteer board of professionals who review and score applications to become state-approved trainers of early learning professionals.
- Department of Labor and Industries: Staff continues to meet with Dave Wasser, our agency liaison, on changes in law or policies that may impact the Asian American and Pacific Islander community. The Department of Labor & Industries announced it is proposing no increase in the average rate for workers' compensation insurance. If adopted, this would be the second straight year with no increase in workers' comp rates.
- Department of Licensing: The commission continues to connect with Josh Johnston, our agency liaison, who provided an update on policies and proposed rules impacting the Asian American and Pacific Islander community. The Department of Licensing recently introduced a fast and easy way to manage the driver license on all vehicle, trailer and boat licenses in one online service called, *License Express*.
- **Liquor Control Board**: On October 4th, Kim Sauer from the Liquor Control Board presented on the commission's radio pilot program. She provided background information on the *Responsible Vendor Program* which is a free self-monitoring program that rewards retail licensees who take positive steps to prevent the sale and service of alcohol to minors and apparently intoxicated persons.
- Secretary of State: Patrick Reed provided an update on policies, filings and publications of interest to the Asian American and Pacific Islander community. Community members should not forget to file for a Nonprofit Corporation Annual Report year to year before their anniversary date. The Secretary of State is also in the process of building a new easy registration system for entities to utilize which will be launched in the next few months.
- Department of Revenue: Staff continues to meet with Rick Stedman to discuss current policies and programs for the community. The Department of Revenue will be hosting Business Outreach workshops to teach the basics of Washington State taxes. This free workshop will help community members understand tax reporting responsibilities. The next workshop will take place on November 20th in East Wenatchee and November 21st in Spokane. More information can be found at www.dor.wa.gov

- Office of the Insurance Commissioner: Staff connected with Chewon Lee, our agency liaison, who provided an update on policies, programs, resources and outreach to the Asian American and Pacific Islander community. Starting October 15th, there will be several events focusing on educating the community about the open enrollment period for prescription drug plans (Part D) and Medicare Advantage plans. Many of these events will partner with the Korean Women's Association and the Chinese Information and Service Center.
- O Department of Commerce: Leigh Felton, our agency liaison, provided an update on the recent trade mission to India and Korea along with the agency's work in preparing for the upcoming Aerospace & Defense Suppliers Summit. Staff continues to advocate for translated materials for the Asian American and Pacific Islander community and the new agency Website is expected to provide translation in many Asian languages.
- Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction: Phouang Hamilton is our new agency liaison. Recent national data shows an increase in bullying in the Asian American and Pacific Islander populations. Community members should be aware that October was Bullying Prevention month and that the law prohibits harassment, intimidation, and bullying in our schools.
- Department of Health: Staff is working with our agency liaison, Jovi Swanson, on an outreach presentation for the agency's Multicultural Workgroup. A representative from the Department of Health will also be speaking at our commission's next board meeting on environmental health issues.
- Department of Ecology: A representative from the Department of Ecology will be presenting at the commission's next board meeting on environmental and health issues impacting the Asian American and Pacific Islander community consuming fish in our state.

6. CAPAA COMMISSION:

- **Board Meetings**: Please save the dates for our 2013 board meetings which will be on January 12th, March 16th, June 15th, September 14th and November 16th. Special thanks to the Chinese Information and Service Center for providing a venue for our meeting and Commissioner Leung for the refreshments.
- Standing Committees: Standing committees continue to meet on the commission's three priority areas of education, health care/human services and economic development. Most committees meet on a monthly basis in-person or by conference call.

7. UPDATE ON ISSUE AREAS:

• Education:

- Asian American and Pacific Islander Voices in Education Initiative: The Asian American and Pacific Islander Voices in Education Initiative successfully held two statewide summits on September 29th at South Seattle Community College and on October 6th at Highline Community College. Commissioner Takamura serves as our liaison to this initiative and will provide an update on the summits and the current policy work underway.
- Educational Opportunity Gap Oversight and Accountability Committee: Commissioner Takamura and Sili Savusa serve as our community representatives on this committee. Policy priorities for this committee were recently reviewed and Commissioner Takamura will provide an update.
- Education Workgroups: Community representatives continue to sit on the following workgroups: Early Learning, Gangs in Schools, Ed Tech, QEC Compensation Workgroup, the Bilingual Education Advisory Committee and the OSPI & External Partners Dropout group.

• Health Care and Human Services:

Asian American and Pacific Islander Health Disparities Initiative: The commission continues working on the statewide AAPI Health Disparity Initiative. The initiative's primary goal is to achieve health equity for Asian Americans, Native Hawaiians and Pacific Islanders in our state. The focus areas of the initiative are data collection, treatment, prevention and education on the Affordable Care Act. Previous meetings discussed monitoring, surveying and analyzing current trends in health legislation in other states that impact Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders and determining whether any of this work can be utilized in policy for Washington State. Commissioner Aragon serves as a liaison to this initiative.

Governor's Interagency Council on Health Disparities: The executive director serves as a representative to this
council on behalf of the commission. The council is working to develop policy recommendations for the areas of:
poverty, behavioral health, environmental exposures and hazards, adverse child experiences, health reform
implementation and its potential impacts on health disparities.

• Economic Development:

- o **Translated Small Business Guide**: The commission advocated for the translation of the Small Business Guide and a successful pilot in Chinese and Korean is now available. This guide provides helpful information, links to valuable resources, and outlines the steps for starting and operating a business in Washington. Special thanks to Commissioner Leung and Commissioner Lee for their assistance. More information can be found at http://www.ora.wa.gov/business.asp
- Trade mission to India and Korea: In October, Governor Gregoire led a trade mission to India and Korea where she promoted Washington state industries and products to potential investors and attracted new opportunities for job growth. She was joined by nearly 50 business, education and government leaders working to expand exports and investment in our state's agriculture, life sciences and technology sectors.
- o **Economic Development Workgroups and Committees**: A special thanks to the many representatives serving on statewide committees working on economic development issues. Albert Shen, a member of the Economic Development Committee, serves as a representative on the Small Business Advisory Committee. Commissioner Dash sits on the Export Initiative which hosts quarterly working group meetings. Maiko Winkler-Chin is working with staff on the Microenterprise program and Mohan Gurung on the Efficient Regulation exercise.
- Washington Wine Asia Export Initiative: Commissioner Leung continues to work with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor on a wine export initiative. In September, the state hosted a delegation from Japan which visited 13 wineries.

GUEST SPEAKERS

Duwamish River Cleanup Coalition

• BJ Cummings, Development and Policy Advisor with the Duwamish River Cleanup Coalition, provided information on the pollution and cleanup effort on the Duwamish River. The Duwamish River is a federal Superfund Site and one of the most toxic waste sites in the nation as a result of a century of pollution from urban and industrial sources. Toxins include arsenic and carcinogens. The Duwamish River supports a dynamic mix of industry, fishing, shipping, recreation and wildlife. It is surrounded by some of Seattle's lowest-income neighborhoods, whose residents have higher rates of diseases such as lung cancer, more acute asthma attacks, and shorter life expectancies than elsewhere in the country. Accountability and clean is key and cleanup efforts are underway to protect the environment and people's health. Current work includes focus groups on the cumulative health impact, comprehensive survey and community mapping as well as a push to include fishermen who are being overlooked in current cleanup plans. The Coalition requests the assistance of the commission in reaching out to AAPI families that may be fishing in the area.

Environmental: State and Federal Agency Representatives

Question 1: Please provide an introduction to your work.

- Department of Ecology
 - o Mille Piazza, Environmental Justice Coordinator at the Department of Ecology, provided an introduction.
 - o She works with low income communities of colors who are often overlooked.
 - o The agency works with King County to raise the awareness on environmental issues in the region.
 - Current issues include arsenic, lean and heavy metal land poisoning, rule making on water quality and petroleum gas stations as well as shellfish consumption.
 - o AAPI populations suffer disproportionately from environmental issues so it is important that the agency works with the commission on distributing information on upcoming town hall meetings for ruling making.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
 - Renee Dagseth, Community Involvement Coordinator with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, provided an introduction
 - The agency continues to develop and revise the cleanup plan for the Duwamish Waterway Superfund site. The agency is currently holding community hearings on the cleanup process and would like to hear from underrepresented communities.

- The agency requests the commission's assistance in how to design long-term protective measures that are sensitive to cultural fishing traditions and diets.
- Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
 - o Craig Kenworthy, Puget Sound Air Quality, provided an introduction.
 - The agency implements the mandates that are spelled out by the federal Clean Air Act and the Washington Clean
 Air Act. These include activities such as monitoring for air pollution throughout our region and regulating
 businesses that have potential air pollution emissions.
 - The agency works in partnership with the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency.
 - o Minorities such as Asian American and Pacific Islanders are suffering disproportionately from poor air quality because of their close proximity to centers of transportation.
 - o The agency is working on implementing green energy in low income areas.

• Department of Health

- Joanne Snarski with Office of Environmental Health, Safety, and Toxicology at the Department of Health, provided an introduction.
- The department is comprised of four offices in the division; Water Quality, Radiation Protection, Environmental Health Safety and Shellfish Protection.
- Current work on general environmental safety issues includes testing toxins in shellfish and their affect on high risk consumers such as women and children. Different shellfish species consumed affects the rate of consumption for different ethnic populations.
- o To conduct better outreach, the department is producing translated healthy advisory flyers.
- Erin Kochaniewicz with Office of Environmental Health, Safety, and Toxicology at the Department of Health, provided an introduction.
- The Office of Environmental Health, Safety, and Toxicology works on numerous cleanup sites.
- When health assessments are produced, the department is in charge of conducting outreach to communities. Their
 partners on conducting outreach on shellfish harvesting include InterIm CDA and the Department of Fish and
 Wildlife. Their main outreach method is through handouts and signage posted at each designated site.

Question 2: How can the commission or state government provide assistance?

- Department of Ecology
 - Request more AAPIs to engage environmental issues and to receive greater public comment on rules from this
 population.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
 - Request for greater AAPI attendance at public meetings in order to receive more feedback.
 - o Request for more feedback on outreach materials to determine effectiveness and culturally competence.
 - o Request for long-term advisors on environmental measures.
- Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
 - Request for feedback from AAPI business leaders or community members who complain about policies and programs.
- Department of Health
 - o Request the identification of community leaders and ethnic media centers and a letter of support on their upcoming grant.

Commission Request of State and Federal Agencies

• Invest in outreach to the Asian American and Pacific Islander community within the next 6-12 months, (2) review current government materials to determine if effective and necessary to update and (3) provide information to the Asian American and Pacific Islander community on opportunities to make public comment on rules, programs and policies in this field.

Presentation: Commissioner Dash

• Commissioner Dash presented information on the Washington State Summit on US-India Trade & Commerce at the Seattle Center held on September 27th to the 28th. The Summit was hosted by the Washington State and India Trade Relations Action Committee in collaboration with the Consulate General of India in San Francisco, City of Seattle, Port of Seattle, Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation, the Foster School of Business and the Seattle Center Foundation as part of the Next 50 event marking the 50th year anniversary of the Seattle Center and Seattle's 1st World Fair. Millions of dollars of trade depend on exports and imports; of the 75% of trade conducted between the Pacific Rim, only 1% is conducted between India. WASITRAC was established in 2007. Plans for the trade mission started in 2010. The summit was divided into four categories; tourism, trade, school exchange, and cultural understanding. The complicated political structure of India can often be a barrier to trade. There are 28 states and 100 political parties with some states governed by regional parties. There is a need for advocacy groups that promote exports to India.

Public Comment

- Jasmel Sangha, President of the Washington Liquor Store Association, requested assistance on opposing high taxes and sales being shifted to big corporate companies.
- Jan and Dana Gerry with Quiet Skies provided an introduction. A disproportional number of airline routes fly over low-income minority communities. Air pollution affects education and health including stress, high blood pressure, speech interference and loss of productivity. The resale value of housing also decreases as a result. Current advocacy includes not having planes drop their gears early which could cause noise pollution. This is a federal issue and the commission is provided a referral to government representatives that could assist.
- Roxanne Lorenzana commented that she is interested in environmental justice on sound quality issues. She noticed that
 flights are moving from the north end to the south end.
- Teresita Batayola, with the International Community Health Services, provided information on International
 Community Health Services and request a letter to be sent to the Puget Sound Health Alliance from the commission on
 the inclusion of Asians, Native Hawaiians and Other Pacific Islanders in the Puget Sound Health Alliance proposal for
 Aligning Forces for Equality (AF4Q). This is a grant proposal for the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation to do a health
 checkup study on diabetes.

Motion was made 1:38 p.m. by Commissioner Takamura and seconded by Commissioner Dickinson to provide a letter of support on the inclusion of Asians, Native Hawaiians and Other Pacific Islanders in the Puget Sound Health Alliance proposal for Aligning Forces for Equality (AF4Q). Motion passed.

• Melissa, Director of the Asian Student Commission (ASC) at the University of Washington provided an introduction. ASC serves the Asian & Asian American student community on the University of Washington campus, with some outreach to communities in the Greater Seattle area. ASC partnered with numerous organizations, including APACE, on civic engagement activities. The vital issue for students now is tuition. There are concerns with the increase in tuition, cut backs in library hours and resources. Student and families are paying for 70% of their own public education. She is currently working with legislators on this issue. The next University of Washington lobby day is in February.

Announcements

- Commissioner Dash announced that he was invited to a White House Reception with Vice President Joe Biden to celebrate Diwali.
- Commissioner Tufono announced that general elections were held in American Samoa on November 6th. The lawsuit regarding military benefits to Samoan men was dropped.
- Commissioner Pen announced that there were budget cuts in Tacoma that affected various community organizations.
- Commissioner Pascua announced that the Department of Agriculture is conducting outreach to farmers in the Yakima Valley on loan programs in follow up the Executive Director's meeting.
- Commissioner Takamura announced that South Seattle Community College received their next round of funding from the AANAPISI Grant Program.
- Commissioner Nguyen announced that the Puget Sound Regional Council's South Corridor Task Force (SCTF) is developing a template for station area typology which will help determine what type of strategies and resources are needed to support equitable growth and housing in the region.
- Commissioner Aragon announced that she will be attending the Asian Pacific Islander Community Leadership Foundation Graduation dinner. She continues her advisory role in the Health Exchange Commission.

Commissioner Takamura motioned to adjourn the board meeting at 1:57 p.m. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Tufono with unanimous approval.

Minutes prepared by Justin Chan.